
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
 

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. on a 
Zoom Virtual Board meeting. Supervisor Stumbo stated because this meeting is on 
Zoom we would not be able to do The Pledge of Allegiance or a moment of silent 
prayer.  
 
Members Present:  Supervisor Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy Roe,  
                                         Treasurer Doe 
                                         Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe, 
                                                          Monica Ross-Williams, and Jimmie Wilson  
                                          
Members Absent:  None 
                    
Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. 7:00PM – RESOLUTION 2020-11, CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD 
STREETLIGHT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #219 CRYSTAL POND    
(PUBLIC HEARING SET AT THE AUGUST 18, 2020 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
Supervisor Stumbo declared the Public Hearing opened at 7:01PM. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe read an email from Shekinah Errington, resident of Crystal 
Pond. She said Ms. Errington supports the streetlights and cameras and was 
happy Lombardo Homes was paying for the installation. Ms. Errington stated she 
would prefer to have their association pay the fees. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she 
sent her an email stating DTE would only work with municipalities but she told 
her the Association could hire an electrical contractor to put in the lights. Clerk 
Lovejoy Roe said she explained what the law was regarding special assessment 
districts. Clerk Lovejoy Roe did not hear back from Ms. Errington. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo declared the Public Hearing closed at 7:04PM. 
 
 

B. 7:00PM – RESOLUTION 2020-12, CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD CAMERA 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #075 CRYSTAL POND 

           (PUBLIC HEARING SET AT THE AUGUST 18, 2020 REGULAR MEETING) 
 
Supervisor Stumbo declared the Public Hearing opened at 7:07PM. 
 
No Public Comments. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo declared the Public Hearing closed at 7:08PM 
 
All agreed to bring both Resolutions to the next meeting for action because the 
Resolutions were incorrect in the packet. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident, thanked Supervisor Stumbo for the lights on 
Michigan Ave. She said they look great.  She said she thanked Trustee Ross-
Williams for the Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policy. She said she likes the part 
that says resist all the temptation and outside pressure to use the position for a 
singular benefit. She said the board should not have same family members on the 
board. 
 
David Benoit, Township Resident thanked the board for the green waste 
management bin. He said for the first time in the six years that he has lived in 
Ypsilanti Township he was experiencing rats in his neighborhood. He said he is 
concerned about brush collection and believes this may be why they are having 
problems with rodent control. He said he would ask the board while they are 
working out the budget to reconsider brush collection. He thanked the board for 
their continued work and service to the township. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 18, 2020 REGULAR MEETING AND AUGUST 26, 
2020 SPECIAL MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR SEPTEMBER 1, 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$480,016.38 
2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 IN THE AMOUNT 

OF $715,481.89 
3. CHOICE HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR AUGUST 2020 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $31,531.32 
4. CHOICE HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR JULY 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,196.50 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
He said several years ago the Township had numerous problems with David Kircher 
who owned income property in Ypsilanti Township. He went to prison for his 
criminal acts and we thought we were finished with dealing with him. Attorney 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 
 
Winters stated that a few years ago David Kircher with a different Attorney filed 
three counts against the Township for inverse condemnation making allegations 
that the Township had motivation to acquire Eastern Highland Apartments. He said 
while Mr. Kircher was filing this lawsuit the Michigan Municipal League, which is 
the Townships’ Insurer does not provide coverage to the Township on claims of 
inverse condemnation. He said because of this the Township had all of the risks, all 
of the exposure, and all of the cost. He said the Judge dismissed the lawsuit with 
prejudice stating this lawsuit was frivolous. He said the Township had to bare this 
by themselves since the Insurer would not provide coverage. He said a number of 
the MMLPP competitors do provide coverage for inverse condemnation and 
encouraged this board and the future board to think about getting coverage in case 
the future brings another lawsuit for inverse condemnation so the Township is not 
left vulnerable if this happens again. 
  
OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. 2nd READING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2020-493, AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 62-77 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, TO ADJUST SEWAGE 
DISPOSAL RATES (1ST READING HELD AT THE AUGUST 18, 2020 
REGULAR MEETING)    

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve the 2ND Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2020-493, an Ordinance to 
Amend Chapter 62, Article IV, Section 62-77 of the Code of Ordinances, Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, to Adjust Sewage Disposal Rates (see attached). 
 
Lovejoy Roe…………….Yes      Doe…………………..…Yes    Eldridge………………Yes 
Jarrell Roe…..………….Yes      Ross-Williams……….Yes   Wilson………………..Yes 
Stumbo……………………Yes 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH DTE FOR INSTALLATION OF 
ONE (1) STREETLIGHT AT THE INTERSECTION OF CLARK RD. AND FORD 
BLVD. TO FACILITATE A PUBLIC SAFETY CAMERA IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,382.15 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #266-301-000-977-000 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
Agreement with DTE for Installation of One (1) Streetlight at the Intersection of 
Clark Rd. and Ford Blvd. to Facilitate a Public Safety Camera in the Amount of 
$1,382.15 Budgeted in Line Item #266-301-000-977-000 (see attached). 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director stated that this is one place law enforcement has 
suggested a streetlight and camera.  He said this has been an area for many 
accidents. 
 
The motion was carried unanimously. 
 

2. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 
2020 AT APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TAX LEVY  

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to 
Approve Request to set a Public Hearing Date of Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 
Approximately 7:00PM – Special Assessment Tax Levy .  
 
The motion was carried unanimously. 
                                                                                                                                                                                           

3. REQUEST TO WAIVE THE FINANCIAL POLICY AND AWARD THE LOW 
QUOTE FOR PURCHASE OF A VENTRAC 4500Y TO WEINGARTS OF ANN 
ARBOR IN THE AMOUNT OF $26,422.25 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #252-
252-000-976-000     

 
A motion was made by Trustee Wilson, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
the Request to Waive the Financial Policy and Award the Low Quote for Purchase 
of a Ventrac 4500Y to Weingarts of Ann Arbor in the Amount of $26,422.25 
Budgeted in Line Item #242-242-000-976-000. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she doesn’t think we should mow this area that it isn’t 
environmental good. She said its’ very steep and should be left alone to grow.  She 
said mowing isn’t good for water quality. 
 
Michael Saranen, Hydro said that we are not allow to let this grow due to federal 
regulations. He said using a weed wacker on the embankments are very dangerous 
for falls. He said this is a tool that makes it safer for our employees. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that other departments can use this for other uses. 
 
Mr. Saranen stated there are attachments you can purchase that will do a variety 
of jobs. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked if we could use it for park maintenance. 
 
Michael Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director said it can be used for many 
different things such as mowing ditches and with attachments it could be used for 
snow plowing. 
 
The motion was carried unanimously. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
 

4. REQUEST TO WAIVE THE FINANCIAL POLICY AND APPROVE UIS, A 
SINGLE SOURCE PROVIDER TO PROVIDE PROGRAMMING SERVICES ON 
THE EXISTING PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC CONTROLLER (PLC) AT THE 
HYDRO STATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,125.00 BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #252-252-000-976-000                                                                

 
A motion was made by Trustee Wilson, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
Request to Waive the Financial Policy and Approve UIS, a Single Source Provider 
to Provide Programming Serivces on the Existing Programmable Logic Controller 
(PLC) at the Hydro Station in the Amount of $10,125.00 Budgeted in Line Item 
#242-242-000-976-000. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

5. REQUEST TO APPROVE PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
FROM STANTEC FOR THE MDNR TRUST FUND GRANT PROJECT TO 
LOONFEATHER POINT PARK IN THE AMOUNT OF $58,696.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-970-000-975-587 
 

     
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to 
Approve Proposal for Professional Services from Stantec for the MDNR Trust 
Fund Grant Project to Loonfeather Point Park in the Amount of $58,696.00 
Budgeted in Line Item #212-970-000-975-587. 
 
Michael Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director said we were awarded a Trust 
Fund Grant through Michigan Department of Natural Resources for Loonfeather 
Park. He said part of that agreement is work with a professional that will take us 
from engineering design all the way through construction and administration. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. RESOLUTION 2020-20, 2020 MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL 
RESOURCES TRUST FUND PROJECT AGREEMENT RESOLUTION 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve Resolution 2020-20 2020 Michigan Department of Natural Resources 
Trust Fund Project Agreement Resolution (see attached).            
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
 

7. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AMENDED AGREEMENT FOR SUBAWARD 
OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE SCHOONER COVE BUS STOP 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve the Amended Agreement for Subaward of Federal Financial Assistance 
with Washtenaw County for Construction of the Schooner Cove Bus Stop (see 
attached). 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that she has reached out to AAATA but they have not 
responded. She said she didn’t know if it was because of Covid they were not 
getting back to us. She said because usually they talk with us when they are 
changing their service and we work with them to try and keep routes in the most 
needed part of the Township 
 
Attorney Winters said it is disrespectful of AAATA to not respond to the Township 
Board. He said they responded when they wanted millage money. He said the 
township needs to know what service they are going to provide to the township. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she was at the AAATA meeting. She thinks the 
services was restored to the south side of Ypsilanti but has not responded to us. 
She said essential bus service is still going on with AAATA. She said it needs to be 
restored at least a few times a day to help with moving residents around the 
township. She said she would like Mr. Carpenter to come to a future board meeting 
so he can explain when this will be restored in the township because the township 
is still paying for the millage. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said AAATA required so many riders to put up a bus shelter and 
the Schooner Cove area must have been busy enough to suggest the shelter but 
now they are not servicing that area. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. REQUEST TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE ANN ARBOR YMCA  

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding with the Ann 
Arbor YMCA (see attached). 
 
Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director stated that we signed an 
agreement with YMCA about providing summer camps at our Community Center. 
He said although it started late they did provide the camps. He said this is an 
amendment to that agreement that terminated the end of summer. He said this 
amendment will allow us to partner with the YMCA to provide learning labs where 
students can go to participate in virtual school. He said they will attend the learning 
lab at the Community Center. He said this will be for students who may have 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 7 
 
 
parents that both work and have nowhere to send their children. Mr. Hoffmeister 
said the YMCA began this program this week and we are working to enhance our 
wifi at the Community Center to accommodate this program. 
 
Trustee Wilson stated that he is happy to be providing this service but his wife 
called for their six year old to attend and the cost is quite high. He said it is in the 
range of a high priced day care and expected YMCA to be a little lower cost. He said 
he is happy the opportunity is there for people who can afford it. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated they have scholarships available. She asked how many 
participants are they able to handle.  
 
Mr. Hoffimeister stated there would be two groups of 8-10 kids. He said they will 
be socially distanced and supervised by an adult. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

9. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH THE WASTE 
MANAGEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING AND YARD 
WASTE 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that Attorney Winters said they are asking to table this 
for clarification. 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Table the Request to Approve the Agreement with the Waste Management for 
Municipal Solid Waste, Recycling and Yard Waste. 
 
Lovejoy Roe…………….Yes      Doe…………………..…Yes    Eldridge………………Yes 
Jarrell Roe…..………….Yes      Ross-Williams……….Yes   Wilson………………..Yes 
Stumbo……………………Yes 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

10.  BUDGET AMENDMENT #11      
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe Approve 
Budget Amendment #11 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 8 
 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Wilson, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Adjourn. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:18PM.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

Ordinance 2020-493 

 
 

An ordinance to amend Chapter 62, Article IV, Section 62-77 of the Code of 
Ordinances, Charter Township of Ypsilanti, to adjust sewage disposal rates. 

 
BE IT ORDERED BY THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, that: 
 
Section 62-77 of Chapter 62, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances be revised as 

follows: 
 
For all billings rendered prior to October 1, 2020, existing sewage disposal service rates 

shall prevail. For all billings rendered on or after October 1, 2020, charges for sewage disposal 
services shall be as follows, for each bimonthly (two-month) period: 

 
Readiness-to-serve rates based on size of meter: 
 
 

Meter Size 
(inch) 

Sewer Rate 

5/8-3/4 $ 16.47 
1 $ 41.18 
1-1/2 $ 82.36 
2 $ 131.78 
3 $ 411.79 
4 $ 823.59 
6 $ 1,647.16 
8 $ 2,882.54 
10 $ 4,529.70 
12 $ 5,353.29 

 
 
Commodity rate:  $2.71 per 100 cubic feet 
 
 

 
*      *      *      *      *      *      *      *      *      * 

 

 

I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan 
hereby certify adoption of Ordinance No. 2020-493 by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
assembled at a Regular Meeting held on September 15, 2020 after first being introduced at a Regular 
Meeting held on August 18, 2020. The motion to approve was made by member Roe and seconded by Doe 
YES:  Stumbo, Roe, Doe, Eldridge, Ross Williams, Jarrell Roe, Wilson ABSENT:  None  NO: None  
ABSTAIN:  None.  

 

 

___________________________________ 

     Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Published:  Thursday, September 24, 2020 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-20 

2020 MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES  

TRUST FUND PROJECT AGREEMENT RESOLUTION 

 

It is Resolved that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, does hereby accept the terms of 
the Agreement as received from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources, and that the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti does hereby specifically agree, but not by way of limitation, as 
follows:  
 
1. To appropriate all funds necessary to complete the project during the project period and to 

provide $296,500.00 (or 50%) dollars to match the grant authorized by the DEPARTMENT. 
 
2. To maintain satisfactory financial accounts, documents, and records to make them available 

to the DEPARTMENT for auditing at reasonable times.  
 
3. To construct the project and provide such funds, services, and materials as may be 

necessary to satisfy the terms of said Agreement.  
 
4. To regulate the use of the facility constructed and reserved under this Agreement to assure 

the use thereof by the public on equal and reasonable terms.  
 
5. To comply with any and all terms of said Agreement including all terms not specifically set 

forth in the foregoing portions of this Resolution.”  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2020-20 approved 
by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on 
September 15, 2020. 

                                    

                                                                                    ___________________________________ 

                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 















































CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #11 

September 15, 2020

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $68,868.00

Revenues: Contributions for Streetlights/Cameras 101-000-000-675.002 $68,868.00

Net Revenues $68,868.00

Expenditures: Streetlight - Construction 101-956-000-926.050 $53,877.00
Neighborhood Camera System 101-970-000-972.000 $14,991.00

Net Expenditures $68,868.00

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $58,696.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 212-000-000-699.000 $58,696.00

Net Revenues $58,696.00

Expenditures: Loonfeather Park 212-970-000-975.587 $58,696.00

Net Expenditures $58,696.00

Request to increase budget for the purchase and installation of streetlights and cameras paid by developer of 
Crystal Ponds. There will be a special assessment district set up to pay for annual operations and maintenance.  
The purchase and installation will be funded by funds received from the developer.

Request to increase budget for professional engineering and architectural work at Loonfeather Point Park. The 
lowest qualified project  proposal was from StanTec. If approved, they will also administer a grant and over see 
construction. This will  be funded by an appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance. 

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #11 

September 15, 2020

252 - HYDRO STATION FUND Total Increase $41,548.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 252-000-000-699.000 $26,423.00

Net Revenues $26,423.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay New Equipment 252-252-000-976.000 $26,423.00

Net Expenditures $26,423.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 252-000-000-699.000 $10,125.00

Net Revenues $10,125.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay New Equipment 252-252-000-976.000 $10,125.00

Net Expenditures $10,125.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 252-000-000-699.000 $5,000.00

Net Revenues $5,000.00

Expenditures: Repairs and Maintenance 252-252-000-930.000 $5,000.00

Net Expenditures $5,000.00

584 - GOLF COURSE FUND Total Increase $16,662.00

Revenues: Insurance Reimbursements 584-000-000-694.004 $16,662.00

Net Revenues $16,662.00

Expenditures: Contractual Services 584-584-000-818.000 $16,662.00

Net Expenditures $16,662.00

Request to increase budget to purchase programming to enhance the automation of both generators.  This will be 
funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.  

Request to increase budget for insurance reimbursement for damaged caused by lighting strike to a panel at 
Green Oaks Golf Course. This will be funded by a reimbursement check from our Liability Insurance Company.

Request to increase budget to purchase a Ventrac 4500Y mower to improve safety on steep slopes. This will be 
funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for additional maintenance and repair due to the repair of the Hydraulic valve panel 
assembly which used 46% of the budget.  This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.  

2 of 2



Motion to Amend the 2020 Budget (#11)  

 

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $68,868 to $10,295,567 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 Move to increase the BSRII Fund budget by $58,696 to $2,403,417 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Hydro Station Fund budget by $41,548 to $558,966 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Golf Course Fund budget by $16,662 to $784,606 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




